
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
Minutes

August 6, 2014 6
Payroll

Payroll/Overtime 9
Warrants

Accounts Payable 13
Resolution Approving Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01, Avila E
Street Lots

Staff Report - Tentative Parcel Map 14-01 29
Resolution Approving Proposition 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement
for Residential Water Meter Project

Staff Report - Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement 42
Monthly Investment Report Ending July 31, 2014

Investment Report 52
Call for Resolution Requesting Action by Congress on Drought
Legislation

Draft Resolution 55
Report on Implementation of State Mandated Emergency Water
Conservation Measures

Staff Report - Water Conservation 60
Resolution Awarding Bid for the 2014 Street Repair Project to
Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc.

Staff Report - Street Repair Project Award 69
Resolution Awarding Bid for the 2014 Concrete Project

Staff Report-Concrete Project Award 74
Resolution Authorizing the Donation and Sale of Surplus
Equipment

Staff Report - Surplus Equipment 80
General Fund Reserve Policy

Staff Report - General Fund Reserve Policy 84

1



AGENDA 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, August 20, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 
 

AGENDA PACKET AVAILABLE FOR  
REVIEW 72 HOURS PRIOR TO  

THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING AT  
THE CITY CLERK’S OFFICE AND  

ON THE CITY WEBSITE 
ITEMS RECEIVED AT THE 

MEETING WILL BE AVAILABLE  
FOR REVIEW AT THE CITY  

CLERK’S OFFICE  
Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

ALL MEETING ATTENDEES ARE ADVISED THAT ALL PAGERS, CELLULAR TELEPHONES AND ANY OTHER 
COMMUNICATION DEVICES SHOULD BE POWERED OFF UPON ENTERING THE COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 

AS THESE DEVICES INTERFERE WITH OUR AUDIO EQUIPMENT. 
 

OPENING CEREMONIES 
 

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep 
• Call to Order 
• Roll Call 
• Invocation 

At this time the Council wishes to provide anyone an opportunity to give a brief invocation or 
inspirational thought. In accordance with law, we would request this opportunity not be used to 
recruit converts, to advance anyone, or to disparage any other faith or belief. If no one steps 
forward, we will observe a moment of silence so that we may all focus our thoughts on how best 
to serve our community. 

 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  
 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 
 

To accommodate members of the public or convenience in the order of presentation, items on 
the agenda may not be presented or acted upon in the order listed. 

 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS 
 

A. Swearing-In of Dustin Lehman and EJ LaBerteaux as Full Time Officers, Introduction and 
Swearing-In of Reserve Officer Loren Dueck (JB) 

 
REQUEST TO ADDRESS COUNCIL 

 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for members of the public to address the Council on items 
of interest that are not on the Agenda and are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the 
Council. Speakers shall be limited to three minutes. It is requested that no comments be made 
during this period on items on the Agenda. Members of the public wishing to address the Council 
on items on the Agenda should notify the Mayor when that Agenda item is called, and the 
Mayor will recognize your discussion at that time. It should be noted that the Council is 
prohibited by law from taking any action on matters discussed that are not on the Agenda. 
Speakers are asked to please use the microphone, and provide their name and address. 

2



2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

Matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered routine and will be enacted by one 
motion and one vote. There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
a member of the audience or a Council Member may request an item be removed from the 
Consent Calendar and it will be considered separately. 

 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 

 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: August 6, 2014 
 

B. SUBJECT: Payroll 
 

Payroll Report: July 20, 2014 - August 02, 2014: $126,822.38: Retro Pay: 1,868.58; 
Overtime: $1,820.90; Standby: $1,056.12; Comp Time Earned: 9 hours 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve payroll as presented. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Payroll/Overtime 
 

C. SUBJECT: Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers  
 

Nos. 21282-21398: $93,914.99; Electronic Bank Transfers: $61,430.43 
Excepting: Kerman Newspapers: #21290 - $50.00 
 Valley Food Center: #21293 - $25.95; #21353 - $107.28; #21394 - $19.60 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank transfers as 
presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Accounts Payable 
 

Consent Cale ndar  
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01, Avila E Street Lots (GH) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving Tentative Parcel 
Map No. 14-01 subdividing a 1.0-acre parcel into four (4) residential lots, subject to 
conditions of approval. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Tentative Parcel Map 14-01 
 

E. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Proposition 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement for Residential 
Water Meter Project (KM) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving Proposition 84 Sub-
Grantee Agreement for Residential Water Meter Project and authorize the City Manager 
to sign agreement. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement

3



 
F. SUBJECT: Monthly Investment Report Ending July 31, 2014 (TJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council accept the Monthly Investment Report as presented 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Investment Report 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

None 
 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS 
 

A. SUBJECT: Call for Resolution Requesting Action by Congress on Drought Legislation (MR) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consider by motion adopting a resolution requesting 
action by Congress on Drought Legislation as presented by the California Latino Water 
Coalition. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Draft Resolution 
 

B. SUBJECT: Report on Implementation of State Mandated Emergency Water Conservation 
Measures (KM) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Informational only. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Water Conservation 
 

C. SUBJECT: Resolution Awarding Bid for the 2014 Street Repair Project to Yarbs Grading 
and Paving, Inc. (GH) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution awarding the bid for the 2014 
Street Repair Project to Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. in the amount of $95,492.40 and 
amend the project budget by adding $30,000 for a total estimated project cost of 
$111,000. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Street Repair Project Award 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Awarding Bid for the 2014 Concrete Project (GH) 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council: 
 

1) By motion adopt resolution awarding the bid for the 2014 Concrete Project to Yarbs 
Grading and Paving, Inc. in the amount of $181,607.00 and authorize the City 
Manager to sign the agreement; 

 

2) Approve a change order for the replacement of concrete curb and gutter and 
sidewalks on Middleton Avenue and 8th Street for an estimated cost of $58,000 and 
authorize the City Finance Director to increase the total budget for the Middleton 
Avenue and 8th Street Concrete Repairs to $65,000. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report-Concrete Project Award 

4



E. SUBJECT: Resolution Authorizing the Donation and Sale of Surplus Equipment (PG) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution authorizing the donation of 
100 chairs and 14 tables to the Kerman Veterans of Foreign War (VFW), American 
Legion and American Legion Auxiliary for use at the new Westside Veterans Memorial 
Building and approve the sale and/or disposal of remaining equipment. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - Surplus Equipment  
 

F. SUBJECT: General Fund Reserve Policy (LP/TJ) 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council receives presentation and direct staff to prepare a 
resolution that establishes a policy regarding General Fund reserves. 
 

ATTACHMENTS: Staff Report - General Fund Reserve Policy 
 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
 

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS 
 

A. Grand Marshal Reception - Thursday, August 28, 5:30-7:30 P.M., United Health Center 
Multipurpose Room 
 

7. CLOSED SESSION 
 

A. Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators; Agency 
Designated Representatives: City Manager Luis Patlan; Employee organization: Kerman 
Public Safety Employees Association. 
 

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 

 
8. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to 
participate at this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559) 846-9380. Notification of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the City Clerk to make reasonable arrangement to ensure accessibility 
to this meeting. Pursuant to the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically handicapped. 

 

5



MINUTES 
KERMAN CITY COUNCIL  

REGULAR MEETING 
Kerman City Hall 

850 S. Madera Avenue 
Wednesday, August 06, 2014 

6:30 PM  
 

Gary Yep – Mayor 
Doug Wilcox – Mayor Pro Tem 
Raj Dhaliwal – Council Member 
Nathan Fox – Council Member 
Bill Nijjer – Council Member 

 
Present: Mayor Yep (GY), Dhaliwal (RD), Fox (NF), Nijjer (BN), Wilcox (DW)  
Absent: None 
Also Present: City Manager/Planning & Development Director Patlan, City Attorney 
Blum, Chief of Police, Community Services Director, Finance Director, Public Works 
Director 

Voting: Yes, No, 
Absent (Abstain 
if needed) 

OPENING CEREMONIES  

• Welcome – Mayor Gary Yep  

• Call to Order 6:38 p.m. 

• Roll Call All present 

• Invocation Walter King 

• Pledge of Allegiance – City Clerk  Performed 

AGENDA APPROVAL/ADDITIONS/DELETIONS 

Approved 
DW/BN moving 
4A after 1B  
(5-0-0) 
 
Approved 
DW/BN (5-0-0) 
w/amendments 

1. PRESENTATIONS/CEREMONIAL MATTERS  

A. Update from Fresno County Elections Clerk Brandi Orth (MR) Presented 

B. Introduction of Kannami Delegation (PG) Presented 

ITEM 4.A MOVED UP ON AGENDA 
 

4.A      SUBJECT: Request for Resolution Supporting the Delay of Implementation of 
the Fuels-Under-the-Cap-and-Trade Program (MR) 

Approved 
DW/NF (5-0-0) 
 
 
Res 14-45 

RECOMMENDATION: Council consider adopting by motion resolution 
supporting a delay of implementation of the fuels-under-the-cap-and-trade 
program as requested by the California Drivers Alliance. 

 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 
 

A. SUBJECT: Minutes 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council approve minutes as presented. 

Approved 
DW/RD 
excepting 
21267 & 21268 
(5-0-0) 
 

 

6



B. SUBJECT: Payroll  

Payroll Report: July 20, 2014 - July 19, 2014: $123,097.93; Overtime: 
$1,182.93; Standby: $1,097.19; Comp Time Earned: 8.25 hours 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Council approve payroll as presented.  

C. SUBJECT: Warrants/Electronic Bank Transfers Nos. 21174-21281: 
$189,306.46; Electronic Bank Transfers: $60,751.63 Excepting: Kerwest: 
#21267 - $97.50; #21268 - $437.00 
 
RECOMMENDATION: Council approve warrants and electronic bank 
transfers as presented. (Pursuant to Government Code 37208) 

Approved 
21267/21268 
RD/NF (4-0-1) 
DW 
 
 
 

D. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving an Amendment to the Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with Kerman Miscellaneous Employees Association 
(KMEA) (TJ) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving an 
amendment to Memorandum of Understanding with the Kerman 
Miscellaneous Employees Association and authorize the City Manager to 
execute MOU. 

Res 14-46 

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS None 

4. DEPARTMENT REPORTS  

A. MOVED UP ON AGENDA UNDER 1. B  

B. SUBJECT: Resolution of Determination of Public Convenience or Necessity 
(PCN Determination) for the Sale of Beer and Wine for Off-site Consumption 
(Type 20 License) for Kerman Carwash, Inc. (LP) 

7:17 p.m. 
GY/RD/MB 
recused 
themselves and 
left meeting 
 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution determining that 
the granting of a Type 20 off-sale alcohol license for Kerman Carwash, Inc. 
would (or would not) serve a public convenience or necessity and authorize 
the City Manager/Director of Planning and Development to complete and 
submit Form 245 to the Department of Alcoholic and Beverage Control. 

Approved 
DW/BN (3-0-2) 
RD/GY 
 
Res 14-48 
 
7:43 p.m. 
GY/RD/MB 
returned to the 
meeting. 

C. SUBJECT: Resolution Approving Municipal Utility Guidelines During Drought 
Emergency (KM) 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Council by motion adopt resolution approving Municipal 
Utility Guidelines during drought emergency. 

Approved 
DW/NF (5-0-0) 
 
Res 14-47 

5. CITY MANAGER/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS  

6. MAYOR/COUNCIL REPORTS  

A. Kannami Farewell Dinner, Friday, August 8, 6 p.m., Community Teen Center  

7



7. CLOSED SESSION  

A. Government Code Section 54957.6 - Conference with Labor Negotiators; 
Agency Designated Representatives: City Manager Luis Patlan; Employee 
organization: City of Kerman Miscellaneous Employees Group, and Kerman 
Public Safety Employees Association 

No reportable 
action  

COUNCIL RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION & REPORT ANY ACTION TAKEN 8:12 p.m. 

8. ADJOURNMENT 8:41 p.m. 

 
 

MINUTES CERTIFICATION 
 

I,   MARCI REYES, City Clerk for the City of Kerman, do hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the 
above Minutes are a true depiction of all actions taken at the City Council meeting held on the first date above 

written at Kerman City Hall, 850 S. Madera Ave, Kerman, CA. 
 

         Date: August 7, 2014 
 
         ____________________ 
         Marci Reyes 
         City Clerk 

 

 

8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



 
 

City of Kerman 
“Community Comes First” 

 
DEPARTMENT: PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 

STAFF REPORT 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

COUNCIL MEETING DATE: AUGUST 20, 2014 

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  

Gary Yep Doug Wilcox  

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 

To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, Director of Planning & Development 
Subject: Resolution Approving Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01, Avila E Street Lots 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Council by motion adopt resolution approving Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01 subdividing a 1.0-acre parcel into four 
(4) residential lots, subject to conditions of approval. 

PROPOSAL: 
 
The applicant has submitted an application for a tentative parcel map to subdivide a 1.0-acre parcel into four (4) 
residential lots ranging in size from 8,400 sq. ft. up to 15,000 sq. ft. The subject property is located on the southeast 
corner of E Street and Siskiyou Avenue, as shown on the location map in Attachment ‘A’. 

APPLICANT/DEVELOPER APPLICANT’S REPRESENTATIVE 
 
Cassandra & Serjando Avila M.R. Weyant 
300 S. Del Norte Avenue West Coast Land Surveying 
Kerman, CA 93630      704 Loyola Avenue, Fresno, CA 93619 

PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION 

On July 28, 2014, the Kerman Planning Commission held a public hearing and adopted a resolution recommending 
to the Council approval of Tentative Parcel Map 14-01 consistent with Section 16.24.040 of the Kerman Municipal 
Code.  

OUTSTANDING ISSUES 

The applicant is requesting that the construction of improvements and payment of development impact fees required 
for the parcel map be deferred until each lots is developed. The deferral of improvements and impact fees is common 
and staff addressed this request in condition of approval no. 23. A separate deferral agreement will be prepared for 
Council consideration at the time the final map is presented for approval. 
 

29



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 2 of 13 
 
SITE INFORMATION: 

Site Location: Southeast corner of E Street and Siskiyou Avenue. 
Assessors Parcel Nos.: 023-432-13s 
Total Size: 1.0 Acre 
Existing Uses: There is an existing mobile home on the property. 
General Plan:  The lot is designated as Medium Density Residential on the Land Use Map. 
Zoning: The parcel is zoned single-family residential (R-1-7) consisting of a minimum of 7,000 sq. ft. 

lot size. 
 
Surrounding Uses & Zoning: 
 
Location Existing Land Uses General Plan Designations Zone Districts 

North Single Family Residential Medium Density Residential R-1-7 
South Single Family Residential Median Density Residential R-1-7 
East Single-Family Residential Medium Density Residential R-1-7 
West Elementary School/Single Family Residential Medium Density Residential R-1-7 

ANALYSIS: 

The filing of a tentative parcel map is the first step in the process of subdividing land into four or fewer lots. The 
proposed tentative parcel map was reviewed by planning staff and presented to the Kerman Planning Commission. 
The Planning Commission adopted a resolution recommending to the City Council approval of the tentative parcel 
map, subject to certain conditions of approval. The proposed lots are summarized in Table 1 and the tentative parcel 
map is depicted in Attachment ‘C’. 
 
Subdivision Map Act 
 
The proposed tentative parcel map will create four or fewer lots consistent with Section 66426(c) of the Subdivision 
Map Act. The tentative parcel map shows the preliminary design of the proposed land division which allows the 
planning department to determine that the design of land division is in conformity with the General Plan. A final parcel 
map will be filed and recorded following approval of the tentative parcel map. 

General Plan Consistency 

Staff has evaluated the proposed tentative parcel map and determined that the tentative parcel map is consistent with 
the following goals and policies contained in the Land Use Element of the General Plan: 

Goal 2: Protect the health, safety and welfare of residents by insuring that Kerman is well-planned. 

Goal 8: Promote urban growth patterns and land use arrangements in Kerman that minimize land 
use conflicts. 

Goal 11: Preserve Kerman’s single-family residential neighborhood atmosphere. 

Policy A-1: Promote a clean, well-maintained community. 

30



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 3 of 13 
 

Discussion: The project would subdivide a one-acre lot into four parcels for future single-family 
development that would eliminate the accumulation of weeds and debris on the 
predominately vacant lot. 

Policy D-1: Single family development shall be well-designed and well-maintained. 

Discussion: The project would be consistent with the development pattern anticipated on lands 
designated as Medium Density Residential and consistent with the dominant pattern of 
parcel development for the surrounding area. 

 
Policy C-7: Promote infill development in order to reduce the rate at which surrounding agricultural land 

is urbanized and to provide for a more efficient use of existing infrastructure. 

Discussion: The project would promote infill development on an existing one acre lot within an 
established neighborhood served by existing infrastructure by creating four lots for future 
single-family development. 

Zoning 

The site is currently zoned single-family (R-1-7) residential which allows a minimum lot size of one dwelling unit per 
7,000 square feet. Permitted uses in this zone district include single family residential dwelling units. Table 1 depicts 
the proposed lot sizes for each parcel. The lot sizes range from 8,400 square feet up to 15,000 square feet consistent 
with the proposed density of development. The future single-family residential units will need to be in compliance with 
required setbacks for the zoning district. 

Table 1 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01 

Parcel Lot Size Current Zoning 
1 8,400 sq. ft. Single-Family (R-1-7) 
2 8,400 sq. ft. Single-Family (R-1-7) 
3 10,546 sq. ft. Single-Family (R-1-7) 
4 15,000 sq. ft. Single-Family (R-1-7) 

Subdivision Ordinance 

In order to approve the proposed tentative parcel map, the subdivision must be consistent with the General Plan, 
Zoning Ordinance, and the Subdivision Map Act. Based on the analysis herein, staff recommends approval of the 
tentative parcel map based on the following findings: 

1. The proposed map is consistent with the applicable General Plan, Subdivision Ordinance, Specific 
Plan, and the Subdivision Map Act. 

The procedural requirements of the Map Act are being followed and all parcels will comply with the 
applicable general plan and engineering and zoning standards pertaining to grading, drainage, utility 
connections, lot size and density. There is no applicable specific plan governing the site. 

2. The design or improvement of the proposed land division is consistent with applicable general plan 
and specific plans. 

The density that will be created as a result of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the density range of 
1 unit per 7,000 square feet prescribed by the Land Use Chapter of the General Plan.  

31



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 4 of 13 
 

 

3. That the site is physically suitable for the proposed density of development. 

The subdivision will create four lots both with adequate land area to support detached single family dwelling 
units with standard setbacks and ample useable private yard space. As depicted in Table 1 above, each lot 
will be a minimum of 7,000 square feet. 

4. The design of the subdivision and the proposed improvements are not likely to cause substantial 
environmental damage or substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat. 

The project site is not located in a sensitive environment but rather in an area surrounded by other residential 
and institutional land uses. The scope of the project would only add four single-family dwellings to the area, 
making it such minor natures so as to not have a significant adverse impact on the environment. 

5. The design of the subdivision and the type of improvements being required are not likely to cause 
serious public health problems. 

The lots being created will comply with all applicable sanitary sewer and water service and stormwater runoff 
requirements, as well as other similar environmental and life safety regulations and standards. Thus, the 
project is not likely to cause serious public health problems. 

6. The design of the subdivision or the type of improvements will not conflict with easements acquired 
by the public-at-large for access through or use of property within the proposed subdivision. 

There are no public easements that currently encumber the property to be subdivided, and all modifications 
made to the existing public improvements fronting the parcels during development of the properties will be 
required to be constructed to current City standards. 

Access 

The subject parcels are located on the southeast corner of E Street and Siskiyou Avenue. Access to the lots will be 
from Siskiyou and E Streets. Both E Street and Siskiyou Avenue are fully developed local streets with two travel 
lanes, parking, curb and gutter. No other rights-of-way, dedications or easements are required for the proposed 
Tentative Parcel Map. 
 
Utilities 
 
All public utilities are available or can be extended to serve the site. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
Staff has determined that the proposed project is categorically exempt from the provisions of the California 
Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines. Pursuant to Section 15315 of CEQA minor land divisions are exempt 
when the proposed division of land is within an urbanized area zoned for residential uses, four or fewer parcels are 
being created, the site is consistent with the General Plan and zoning Map, and all services and access to the 
proposed parcels are available. 

32



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 5 of 13 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: 
 
The Kerman Planning Commission held a public hearing on July 28, 2014 to consider approval, denial or approval of 
tentative parcel map with conditions. A public hearing notice was mailed to property owners and residents within 300 
feet of the site and a notice of the public hearing was published in the Kerman News on July 9, 2014. 

SUMMARY/CONCLUSION: 
 
The proposed Tentative Parcel Map is consistent with the General Plan and Zoning Ordinance as well as the 
Subdivision Map Act. On that basis, staff recommends that the City Council adopts Resolution No. 14-xx approving 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01, subject to the conditions of approval. 

Attachments 
A. Location Map 
B. Zoning Designation Map 
C. Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01 
D. Resolution w/Exhibit 

33



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 6 of 13 
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

Location Map 

SUBJECT SITE 

34



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 7 of 13 
 

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

Zoning 

 
 

35



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 8 of 13 
 

 Attachment ‘C’ 
 

Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01 

 

36



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 9 of 13 
 

Attachment ‘D’ 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
APPROVING TENTATIVE PARCEL MAP NO. 14-01 (AVILA) 

 WHEREAS, a tentative parcel map has been filed by Cassandra and Serjando Avila, 300 S. Del Norte Avenue in 
Kerman, CA 93630 for the division of 1.0 gross acre of land into four (4) parcel, located on the southeast corner of E 
Street and Siskiyou Avenue; and 

 WHEREAS, staff has conducted necessary investigations to assure the proposed division of land would be 
consistent with the purposes of the City’s General Plan, Subdivision Ordinance, and the State Subdivision Map Act; 
and 

 WHEREAS, a written report was prepared by staff which included a recommendation for approval of this tentative 
parcel map subject to conditions; and 

 WHEREAS, a public notice was circulated to adjacent properties and published in the local newspaper as 
required by law prior to Planning Commission public hearing held on July 28, 2014; and 

 WHEREAS, on July 28, 2014, the Kerman Planning Commission reviewed the tentative parcel map and adopted 
a resolution recommending to the City Council approval of the tentative parcel map, subject to conditions of approval; 
and  

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Kerman City Council finds that the proposed project is categorically 
exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines pursuant to Section 15315 consisting of 
minor land divisions; and 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Kerman City Council hereby adopts the following findings in support of 
approval of this tentative parcel map: 

1. The proposed design and improvements of the four (4) lot subdivision are consistent with the General Plan 
Land Use Designation of Medium Density Residential (MDR) for the subject property. 

2. The density that will be created as a result of the proposed subdivision is consistent with the density range of 
1 unit per 7,000 square feet prescribed by the Zoning Map. 

3. The site is physically suitable for the type and proposed density of development because adequate roadway 
capacity and infrastructure exist or can be provided, and the site has no topographical constraints. 

4. The design and improvement of the subdivision is not likely to cause substantial environmental damage or 
substantially and avoidably injure fish or wildlife or their habitat because the site is not within a sensitive 
habitat area. 

5. The design and improvement of the subdivision are not likely to cause serious public health problems 
because adequate sewer and water systems will be provided to the project. 

37



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 10 of 13 
 

6. The design and improvement of the subdivision will not conflict with easements acquired by the public-at-
large, for access through or use of property within the proposed subdivision because all such easements 
have been incorporated into the proposed public streets. 

7. The Kerman City Council, after considering all evidence presented, further finds that approval of the 
proposed tentative parcel map will promote the orderly growth and development of the City. 

 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Kerman City Council of the City of Kerman hereby approves Tentative 
Parcel Map No. 14-01, subject to the conditions of approval attached hereto as Exhibit ‘A’. The foregoing resolution 
adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council held on the 20th of August, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the 
following vote: 

 AYES: 

 NOES: 

 ABSENT: 

 ABSTAIN: 

 The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 

        ____________________________ 
  Gary Yep 
  Mayor  

ATTEST: 

______________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
 

38



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 11 of 13 
 

Exhibit ‘A’ 

Conditions of Approval 

General Requirements 
 

1. The proposed project shall comply with all standard Municipal Code and Subdivision Map Act requirements 
as conditioned by the City Engineer. 

2. Tentative Parcel Map is valid for two (2) years from the date of approval, unless otherwise extended by the 
Planning Commission pursuant to applicable city ordinance. 

3. The filing of a Final Parcel Map must be in accordance with the checklist for final map per the Section 
16.36.010 of the Kerman Municipal Ordinance and consistent with the applicable provisions of the 
Subdivision Map Act. 

4. Prior to the commencement of any work within the City of Kerman, the general contractor and all sub-
contractors shall obtain a business license from the Planning and Development Services Department. For a 
business license application or for more information, contact Olivia Pimentel at (559) 846-6121. 

5. Pursuant to Government Code Section 66474.9, the developer/applicant (including any agent thereof) shall 
indemnify, defend (with counsel selected by the City), and hold harmless the City, and any agency or 
instrumentality thereof, and any officers, officials, employees, or agents thereof, from any and all claim, 
action, suit or proceedings against the City, or an agency or instrumentality thereof, and any officers, officials, 
employees, or agents thereof to attach, set aside, void, or annul, arising in connection with an approval of the 
City, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, advisory agency, appeal board, or legislative body, including 
actions approved by the voters of the City, concerning the project and the approvals granted herein. 
Furthermore, developer/applicant shall indemnify, protect defend (with counsel selected by the City), and 
hold harmless the City, or any agency or instrumentality thereof, against any and all claims, actions, suits, 
proceedings, or judgments against any governmental entity in which developer/applicant’s project is subject 
to that other governmental entity’s approval and a condition of such approval is that the City indemnify and 
defend such government entity. City shall further cooperate fully in the defense of the action. Should the City 
fail to either promptly notify or cooperate fully, the developer/applicant shall not thereafter be responsible to 
indemnify, defend, protect, or hold harmless the City, any agency or instrumentally thereof, or any of its 
officers, officials, employees or agents. 

Fees 

6. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant/developer shall pay all fees as required under the City’s 
Development Impact Fees, and all other fees/charges for wastewater, water, and other City utilities in effect 
at the time of building permit issuance. Contact City Engineer at (559) 244-3124 for updated fees or if you 
have any question regarding the development impact fees. 

7. Prior to issuance of building permits, the applicant/developer shall be responsible for the payment of school 
facility impact fees as adopted by the Kerman Unified School District. 

8. Prior to issuance of a certificate of occupancy for the project, the applicant/developer shall submit proof of 
payment to the Fresno County Transportation Authority’s Regional Transportation Mitigation Fee (RTMF). 
The RTMF must be paid to the RTMF Joint Powers Agency, located at 2035 Tulare Street, Suite 201, 
Fresno, CA. Please call (559) 233-4148 for more information. The rate to be paid is the rate in the effect at 
the time of payment. 

39



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 12 of 13 
 

9. If applicable, the applicant shall be responsible to pay Fresno County Public Facilities Impact Fees in effect 
at the time building permit is issued. For more information, contact Teresa Parks, Accountant, or Stephen 
Farmer, Accounting and Financial Division Chief, Auditor-Controller/Treasurer Tax Collector at (559) 488-
2892. 

10. If applicable, the applicant/developer owners shall pay all Department of Fish and Game fees and associated 
County filing fees if a Notice of Determination is filed (NOD). 

Construction 

11. The applicant/developer shall comply with the City of Kerman Construction and Demolition Recycling 
Program. Contact Olivia Pimentel, Planning Technician, at (559) 846-6121 for more information. 

12. The applicant/developer shall use the City’s franchise waste hauler for any roll-off waste bins used for the 
removal of construction debris. Contact Mid Valley Disposal at (559) 843-2467 for bin information and 
pricing. 

13. The applicant/developer shall be responsible for obtaining and complying with encroachment permits from 
the Building Division for any work performed within the street or alley right-of-ways. A performance bond in 
the amounts prescribed by the Building Official shall be submitted with the encroachment permit application. 
Contact Chris Kufis, Acting Building Official, at (559) 846-2301 for more information 

Engineering  

14. A Final Parcel Map prepared by a Land Surveyor or Civil Engineer licensed to practice surveying shall be 
submitted to the City Engineer for review and approval. A Preliminary Title Report and closure calculations 
shall be submitted. The final parcel map shall conform to the requirements of the Subdivision Map Act and 
the Kerman Municipal Code. 

15. Construct sidewalk and driveway approaches along the frontage of each parcel in accordance with City 
standards. 

16. Install separate sewer services for all parcels in accordance with City standards. 

17. Install separate water service for all parcels in accordance with City standards. 

18. The applicant/developer shall be required to install a separate water meter for each dwelling unit at the time 
of rough plumbing. Contact Public Works (559) 846-9343 for the size and type of water meter. 

19. The conditions of project approval set forth herein include certain fees, dedication requirements, reservation 
requirements and other exactions. Pursuant to Section 66020(d) of the Government Code, these conditions 
constitute written notice of the amount of such fees, and a description of the dedications, reservations and 
other exactions. The applicant is hereby notified that a 90-day protest period, commencing from date of 
approval of the project, has begun. If the applicant fails to file a protest regarding any of the fees, dedication 
requirements, reservation requirements or other exactions contained in this notice, complying with all the 
requirements of Section 66020, the applicant will be legally barred from later challenging such exactions.

40



City Council Staff Report 
Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01  Page 13 of 13 
 

 

20. Request annexation into the City of Kerman Landscaping and Lighting District No. 1, Area No. 9 and consent 
to the first year assessment and all subsequent annual assessments applicable to Area No. 9. The current 
annual assessment for Area No. 9 is $126.76 per parcel. The annual assessment is adjusted annually based 
upon the percentage change in the Consumer Price Index over the previous year. 

21. The existing Agreement for Utility Service which covers this property shall be modified to apply to only Parcel 4. 

22. Offer for dedication to the City of Kerman the following easements and rights of way: 

a. 10’ public utility easement (PUE) along Siskiyou Avenue and E Street frontages. 
b. 2’ pedestrian easement (PE) along Siskiyou Avenue frontage. 

 
23. Construction of all improvements and payment of impact fees may be deferred by agreement by City 

Council. 

 

END OF CONDITIONS 

41



    
 
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: AUGUST 20, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Ken Moore, Public Works Director 
Subject: Resolution Approving Proposition 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement for Residential Water Meter Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution approving Proposition 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement for Residential Water Meter 
Project and authorize the City Manager to sign agreement. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The City of Kerman is a voting member of the Upper Kings Basin Integrated Regional Water Management Authority 
(UKBIRWMA). Through this organization Kerman submitted an application for grant funds to install approximately 
1,400 water meters within the City of Kerman. We competed with other members of the UKBIRWMA for funding and 
were selected as one of the top five projects to receive funding, however we were only funded for approximately 
48% of what we requested. The amount of the grant funds Kerman was approved to receive is $724,934 with a 
required match from the City of $241,645. The sub-grantee agreement is with the UKBIRWMA. All invoices for 
Kerman’s water meter project will be submitted to the UKBIRWMA. The master agreement is between the 
UKBIRWMA and the California State Department of Water Resources. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
Yamabe & Horn will develop a set of plans and specification for the project and advertise for bids 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The project will provide water meters to a portion of the older part of town that is currently not metered. The 
minimum number of water meters that we need to install per the master agreement is 665. All costs directly 
associated with project are eligible for reimbursement through the grant, up to the amount of the grant. The 2014/15 
City water construction capital budget already includes the City match amount.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
$241,645 in water capital construction cost (already included in the 2014/15 budget) 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Not Required 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution w/Exhibit 

42



 
City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 10 
Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14- __ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN APPROVING ENTERING INTO A 
SUB-GRANTEE AGREEMENT WITH THE UPPER KINGS BASIN INTEGRATED REGIONAL WATER 

MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY FOR PROPOSITION 84 INTEGRATED REGIONAL  
WATER MANAGEMENT GRANT FUNDS  

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Kerman is a member of the Upper Kings Basin Integrated Regional 
Water Management Authority; and 

  WHEREAS, the City Staff submitted an application for Round II Prop 84 implementation grant funding; and 

 WHEREAS, the Kings Basin Water Authority evaluation committee scored Kerman as one of five applicants to 
compete with other Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM) groups in central California for funding; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board of Directors of the Kings Basin Water Authority voted to approve a master agreement for 
Prop 84 round 2 implementation funds with the Department of Water Resources; 

 WHEREAS, the five project applicants are required to enter into separate sub-grantee agreements with the 
Upper Kings Basin Integrated Regional Water Management Authority 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that: 

 The City Council of the City of Kerman hereby approves entering into a sub-grantee agreement attached as 
Exhibit ‘A’ with Upper Kings Basin Integrated Regional Water Management Authority for Prop 84 Round II 
Implementation Grant Funds, and authorizes the City Manager or his designee to sign it, and to take such further 
action as may be necessary to obtain the Grant Funds.  

 The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on 
the 20th day of August, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 
 ABSTAIN: 
 
 The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
        ______________________________ 
        Gary Yep 
ATTEST:       Mayor 
 
________________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk  

43



 
City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 10 
Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement 
  

Exhibit ‘A’  

44



 
City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 10 
Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement 
  
  

45



 
City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 10 
Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement 
  
  

46



 
City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 10 
Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement 
  
  

47



 
City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 10 
Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement 
  
  

48



 
City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 10 
Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement 
  
  

49



 
City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 10 
Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement 
  
  

50



 
City Council Staff Report   Page 10 of 10 
Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement 
  

 

51



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of July 31, 2014 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
CD's:
Pacific Mercantile Bank 80900343 0.95% 1/22/08 1/22/14 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,000.00               82.21              

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.20% 8/11/11 8/11/14 52,000.00               52,000.00        52,008.84               -                  

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 8/10/11 8/11/14 46,000.00               46,000.00        46,007.82               -                  

World Financial Network NB 615-030525-245 1.25% 8/31/11 8/29/14 200,000.00             (200,000.00)    -                   -                         -                  

Ally Bank  615-030525-245 1.75% 10/8/10 10/8/14 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,261.00             -                  

CIT Bank, Salt Lake City, UT 615-030525-245 1.50% 5/4/11 11/4/14 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,268.29               -                  

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 11/5/10 11/5/14 97,000.00               97,000.00        97,304.58               -                  

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 1/21/11 1/21/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,558.00             843.01            

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 3/24/11 3/24/15 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,898.66               -                  

Ally Bank, Midvale 615-030525-245 1.80% 6/8/11 6/8/15 147,000.00             147,000.00       148,741.95             -                  

EverBank 615-030525-245 0.70% 12/14/12 6/15/15 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,354.76               -                  

Mercantile Bank of Michigan 615-030525-245 2.00% 1/21/11 7/21/15 150,000.00             150,000.00       152,056.50             1,487.67          

GE Money Bank 615-030525-245 1.50% 8/5/11 8/5/15 50,000.00               50,000.00        50,423.50               -                  

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 8/8/12 8/10/15 97,000.00               97,000.00        97,543.20               -                  

Safra National Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 8/15/13 8/17/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,042.00             -                  

Discover Bank 615-030525-245 1.55% 9/14/11 9/14/15 99,000.00               99,000.00        100,408.77             -                  

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.25% 9/29/10 9/29/15 100,000.00             100,000.00       101,793.00             -                  

Lake City Bank 615-030525-245 0.55% 1/29/14 1/29/16 95,000.00               95,000.00        95,015.20               87.33              

Discover Bank Greenwood 615-030525-245 1.35% 2/1/12 2/1/16 51,000.00               51,000.00        51,834.87               -                  

Goldman Sachs Bank 615-030525-245 1.40% 2/1/12 2/1/16 48,000.00               48,000.00        48,461.76               -                  

Synovus Bank 615-030525-245 0.50% 3/17/14 3/17/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       99,846.00               -                  

Doral Bank 615-030525-245 0.70% 6/12/13 6/13/16 149,000.00             149,000.00       149,181.78             -                  

Doral Bank San Juan PR 615-030525-245 1.20% 6/28/12 6/28/16 99,000.00               99,000.00        100,171.17             -                  

State Bank of India 615-030525-245 2.00% 8/12/11 8/12/16 47,000.00               47,000.00        48,099.80               -                  

Medallion Bank 615-030525-245 1.00% 8/19/13 8/19/16 100,000.00             100,000.00       100,545.00             -                  

Goldman Sachs Bank USA 615-030525-245 1.85% 8/31/11 8/31/16 200,000.00             200,000.00       204,140.00             -                  

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 6-15-030525-245 1.10% 1/25/13 1/25/17 53,000.00               53,000.00        53,124.55               47.92              

Firstbank of Puerto Rico 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/1/13 3/1/17 196,000.00             196,000.00       196,049.00             144.99            

CIT Bank 615-030525-245 0.90% 3/27/13 3/27/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        98,083.30               -                  

Ge Capital Bank 615-030525-245 1.10% 5/8/14 5/16/17 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,263.44             -                  

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/26/12 7/26/17 98,000.00               98,000.00        99,293.60               826.15            

Sallie Mae Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 8/22/12 8/22/17 150,000.00             150,000.00       152,370.00             -                  

1st Merchants 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/21/14 9/21/17 96,000.00               96,000.00        96,083.52               -                  

Third Federal 615-030525-245 1.15% 2/21/14 11/21/17 99,000.00               99,000.00        99,176.22               -                  

Bank of Baroda 615-030525-245 1.25% 3/8/13 3/8/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       246,774.88             -                  

Wells Fargo Bank in SD 615-030525-245 1.00% 3/28/13 3/29/18 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,538.72             -                  

American Express Centurion Bank 615-030525-245 1.15% 5/16/13 5/16/18 98,000.00               98,000.00        97,002.36               -                  

Compass Bank 615-030525-245 1.70% 7/31/13 7/31/18 97,000.00               97,000.00        97,899.19               817.72            

Barclays Bank 615-030525-245 1.90% 4/15/14 4/15/19 248,000.00             248,000.00       247,799.12             -                  

BMW Salt Lake City UT 615-030525-245 1.95% 6/20/14 6/20/19 200,000.00             200,000.00       198,990.00             -                  

Average Rate 1.25%
Subtotal - CD's 4,798,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,598,000.00    4,617,414.35          4,337.00          

Government Securities:

Subtotal - Government Securities -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  
52



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of July 31, 2014 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid

Central Valley Comm Bank CD
200,000.00             200,000.00       200,000.00             227.62            

Total CD and Government Securities Investments 4,998,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,798,000.00    4,817,414.35          4,564.62          

Chandler Asset Management
Beginning Balance -                          -                   

(City of Kerman) 150,825.51             150,825.51       150,825.51             
Interest -                   

-                   -                  
Chandler Ending Balance Total Chandler Investments 150,825.51             -                  -                       150,825.51       150,825.51             -                  

Central Valley Money Market Acct 015030960
Beginning Balance 2,901,993.40          2,901,993.40    
Interest 7/31/14 286.72            286.72             286.72            

-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) 7/10/14 (125,000.00)    (125,000.00)     
-                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

2,901,993.40          (124,713.28)    -                       2,777,280.12    2,777,280.12          286.72            

Subtotal All City Investments 4,798,000.00          (200,000.00)    -                       4,598,000.00    4,617,414.35          4,337.00          

53



CITY OF KERMAN
CD/Securities Portfolio
As of July 31, 2014 6/30/2014 6/30/2015 FY to Date

Interest Rate/ Opening Maturity Book Additions/ Book Interest 
Institution Account Number Trans. Date Date Date Balance (Deletions) Cashed In Balance Fair Value Paid
SUCCESSOR AGENCY

Total - CD's -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

CVCB Money Market Accts 015029549
Beginning Balance 131,388.51             131,388.51       
Interest 7/31/14 4.46                4.46                 4.46                

-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  
-                   -                  

Transfers In/(Out) -                   
-                   
-                   
-                   

Subtotal CVCB Money Market 131,388.51             4.46                -                       131,392.97       131,392.97             4.46                

Subtotal SBI Money Market -                          -                  -                       -                   -                         -                  

Ending Balance - Money Market Accts 131,388.51             4.46                -                       131,392.97       131,392.97             4.46                

Subtotal All Successor Agency Investments 131,388.51             4.46                -                       131,392.97       131,392.97             4.46                

Total Investments 5,280,214.02          (199,995.54)    -                       5,080,218.48    5,099,632.83          4,569.08          
Market Value Adjustment 19,414.35               

(199,995.54)     
(199,995.54)     

-                   

54



 
RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN REQUESTING ACTION BY 

CONGRESS ON DROUGHT LEGISLATION  
 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Kerman is acutely aware of the importance of a reliable, 
secure and safe water supply to the health, prosperity, and well-being of its citizens. Further, the City 
Council understands that, not only its own water supply, but that of the entire surrounding region, has a 
direct impact on the City; and  
 

WHEREAS, the well-being of the City of Kerman and its citizens being integrally connected to the 
well-being of the water supply for the surrounding region, the City has interest in ensuring that the water 
supply of the major water and irrigation districts that surround the City is protected and promoted; and 
 

WHEREAS, an integral part of the total water supply for the region surrounding the City is water 
delivered under a federal Central Valley Project contract of the sort that has been enjoyed by the Friant 
Division irrigation districts located along the East Side of the San Joaquin Valley; and  
 

WHEREAS, this water supply has been withheld from Friant contractors this year for the first time 
in the more than 60 years that such water contracts and deliveries have existed; and 
 

WHEREAS, this year’s zero water supply allocation for Friant Division contractors is already having 
dramatic negative impacts on the groundwater levels of the region, as well as on the farm economy upon 
which the City of Kerman and the surrounding region rely; and 
 

WHEREAS, this year’s zero water supply allocation is directly tied to failed management by state 
and federal agencies of the Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta, as a result of imbalanced 
implementation of the federal Endangered Species Act, preventing typical water deliveries to the San 
Joaquin River Exchange Contractors and compelling said Exchange Contractors to receive San Joaquin 
River water that would normally have been delivered to East Side water and irrigation districts surrounding 
the City of Kerman; and 
 

WHEREAS, just as the City and its residents have been forced to adopt progressively aggressive 
conservation measures to adapt to the current period of drought, so too should the agencies who manage 
resources for the benefit of wildlife and environmental interests; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City of Kerman concurs with the elected leaders of the City’s irrigation and water 
district neighbors, who have concluded that a more balanced implementation of the Endangered Species 
Act in the Delta and a greater focus on environmental water conservation would have resulted in a modest 
water supply for Friant this year, rather than the current zero allocation.  
 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Kerman has a direct and keen interest in 
development of legislation that cures the mismanagement of the Delta, and ensures that a zero-allocation 
for Friant Division contractors will not happen in the future. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that action in Congress must be taken immediately if another year of 
regulatory drought is to be avoided. 
 

55



 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Kerman applauds members of the House of 

Representatives and the United States Senate for passing two separate measures that offer hope of fixing 
the management problems in the Delta that have led to the Friant Division’s zero allocation: Senate 
passage of S. 2198, the Emergency Drought Relief Act, and House passage of H.R. 3964, the 
Sacramento-San Joaquin Valley Emergency Water Delivery Act. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City of Kerman urges California’s delegation to both Houses 
of Congress to immediately conclude negotiations and arrive at a joint Drought Relief measure that can be 
adopted by both houses of Congress and signed by the President.  
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Kerman expresses support for the 
positions taken in the “Allied Growers Letter” to members of Congress dated July 10, 2014, (Exhibit ‘A’) 
signed by a number of the San Joaquin Valley’s farming leaders.  
 
Passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 20th of 
August 2014, by the following vote: 
 

 AYES:  

 NOES:  

 ABSENT:  

 ABSTAINING:  

 
The forgoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Gary Yep 
 Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
 
______________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
 
  

56



 
Exhibit ‘A’ 

 
 
 

57



 

  

58



 

 
 
 

59



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM  
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox  
COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER  
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox Bill Nijjer 

 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: AUGUST 20, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Ken Moore, Public Works Director 
Subject: Report on Implementation of State Mandated Emergency Water Conservation Measures 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Informational only. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
On July 15, 2014 the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) adopted emergency water conservation 
measures effective August 1,, 2014 through April 28, 2015. It states that all water users must comply with the 
following measures: 

 
• Ban landscaping irrigation that results in runoff. 
• Requires a shutoff nozzle on a hose used to wash a vehicle. 
• Prohibits the application of water to any hard surface. 
• Prohibits the use of potable water in any decorative water feature, unless the water is recirculated. 
• Imposes fines of up to $500 per day for violations (that will be treated as infractions). 
• Mandates a limit on outdoor irrigation to two days a week. 

 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The City of Kerman must move forward with an organized program to educate, assist and enforce the new State 
emergency water conservation regulation in an expeditious manner. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The implementation of these measures has begun, and we should have everyone on the new schedule by our target 
date of September 1, 2014. This will be accomplished in stages: 
 

• Revise watering schedule for city parks, medians and other city landscape areas.  
• Meet with Kerman Unified School District, local commercial users and apartment complexes to discuss the 

new watering schedule and to work with them on leak detection and management. 
• Advise all other businesses and residents by placing ads in the local paper, posting the new schedules in all 

city areas, on City website and placing packets at each house.  

60



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 9 
City of Kerman Water Conservation Program 
  

• The packets will contain: 
o The new state mandated watering schedule 
o A flyer highlighting the new regulations and restrictions. 
o Water conservation brochure to help troubleshoot toilet leaks. 
o A brochure that lists some low-water, drought resistant plants. 
o A small sticker specific schedule will be provided to be placed near or on landscape timer box. 
o A flyer with tips on how to reduce your household water usage by 20%.  

• Prepare informational packets for new residents and businesses  
 
The city staff recommends enforcing these mandated emergency conservation measures in accordance with 
our current Kerman Municipal Code 13.04.160 Water wasting violations D. Violations of this section shall be 
termed "water wasting violations". Any person violating this section shall be issued a warning citation. Kerman 
Municipal Code 13.04.160 allows for any person receiving three warning citations within twelve consecutive 
calendar months shall be subjected to a fine in the amount of thirty dollars for the third violation and for each 
additional violation. The amount of any fine shall be added to and collected with the utility charges applicable 
to the property. (Ord. 01-01 § 1 (part), 2001) 

The state mandate allows the city to charge up to $500 per day for violations. Staff recommends we begin 
with the current amount of $30 for the third violation, and then consider escalating the fine incrementally for 
continuing violations at the same location. 

FISCAL IMPACT  
 
At this time not all costs are known, however the following is an estimate: 
 

Materials  $    370.00 
Copying $ 2,250.00 
Public Notice ( 3 times ) $    675.00 

 
Total $ 3,295.00 

 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
N/A 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Watering Schedule 
B. Flyer Highlighting the New Regulations and Restrictions 
C. Water Conservation Brochure to Assist with Troubleshooting Toilet Leaks 
D. Brochure Listing Drought Tolerant Plants 
E. Small Sticker With Residence Specific Watering Schedule  
F. 20 % Reduction Definition Flyer/ Two Languages 

  

61



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 9 
City of Kerman Water Conservation Program 
  
 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

62



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 9 
City of Kerman Water Conservation Program 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 
 
 
 

63



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 9 
City of Kerman Water Conservation Program 
  

Attachment ‘C’ 
  

64



City Council Staff Report   Page 6 of 9 
City of Kerman Water Conservation Program 
  

Attachment ‘D’

65



City Council Staff Report   Page 7 of 9 
City of Kerman Water Conservation Program 
  

Attachment ‘E’ 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

  

66



City Council Staff Report   Page 8 of 9 
City of Kerman Water Conservation Program 
  

Attachment ‘F’ 
 

 
 

67



City Council Staff Report   Page 9 of 9 
City of Kerman Water Conservation Program 
  

 

68



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
A Place “Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: AUGUST 20, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Gary D. Horn, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Awarding Bid for the 2014 Street Repair Project to Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. 

RECOMMENDATION  
 

Council by motion adopt resolution awarding the bid for the 2014 Street Repair Project to Yarbs Grading and 
Paving, Inc. in the amount of $95,492.40 and amend the project budget by adding $30,000 for a total 
estimated project cost of $111,000. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 

The 2014 Street Repair Project consists of the repair of damaged pavement at various locations throughout 
the City.  Bids were received from three contractors. The lowest responsive bidder was Yarbs Grading and 
Paving, Inc. in the amount of $95,492.40. 

 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  

 
The bids for the project were higher than anticipated. The project budget will need to be increased by $30,000 
for a total project cost of $111,000, including contingency and engineering. The adopted budget for the project 
totaled $81,000 to be funded from Local Transportation Funds. 

 
DISCUSSION  

 
Public works developed a list of damaged pavement areas at various locations throughout the City. The 
damage to the existing pavement is due to normal deterioration and appearance of potholes, inadequate 
subgrade causing the pavement to sink or depress, or pavement removal for underground utility repair or 
maintenance. Public works crews patch these damaged pavement areas, as needed, with temporary asphalt 
concrete to maintain comfort and safety for drivers until a paving contractor is selected to permanently pave 
the areas. 
 

The 2014 Street Repair Project will remove the existing pavement and/or patch material and replace it with the 
appropriate pavement section. In addition, the perimeter of the repair will be infrared heated and re-mixed with 
the existing asphalt concrete to create a seamless repair. The elimination of seams at the perimeter of the 
repair is beneficial because it eliminates the potential for water on the pavement surface to seep into the 
seams and cause the pavement section to settle over time. 
 

  

69



City Council Staff Report   Page 2 of 5 
Bid Award – 2014 Street Repair Project (Yarbs Grading & Paving, Inc.) 
  

 

The notice inviting bids was released for the pavement project and three proposals were received by the Tuesday, 
July 29, 2014 deadline. Bids were received from the following contractors: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Staff reviewed the bid submitted by Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. along with information regarding their previous 
work experience on similar type projects and determined Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. to be a responsible 
contractor. 
 

The City budgeted $81,000 for the project. The bids received were higher than anticipated for the following reasons: 
 

1. The original estimate for the project that was used for the City Budget was based on a total pavement 
repair area of approximately 3,700 square feet. However, additional pavement repair area, approximately 
400 square feet, was added after the adoption of the City’s Budget. This equates to an additional $8,000 
in construction cost. 

2. The remaining difference in construction cost is due to the specialized nature of the infrared heating 
process that will be utilized in the pavement repair. There are only a few contractors in the area with the 
required equipment to perform this work. As such, the cost of infrared heating can vary greatly based on 
the amount of work available and the size of the project. 

 
Thus, the total project cost increased to $111,000 including contingency and engineering, as follows: 
 

Work Description Estimated Cost 
Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. $95,492.40 
Contingency $5,500.00 
Engineering $10,000.00 

Total Estimated Cost $111,000.00* 
*Rounded up  

Adopted Budget $81,000.00 
Variance $30,000.00 

 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The bids received were higher than anticipated and the budget for the project will need to increase by 
$30,000 for a total project cost of $111,000. There are sufficient funds available in the City’s Local 
Transportation Funds to cover the increase in project cost. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Vicinity Map  

Contractor Total Bid 
Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. $  95,492.40 
Central Valley Asphalt $134,880.00 
B&B Construction Services $143,638.00 
  
Engineer’s Estimate $  73,000.00 

70



City Council Staff Report   Page 3 of 5 
Bid Award – 2014 Street Repair Project (Yarbs Grading & Paving, Inc.) 
  

 

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
ACCEPTING BID FOR THE 2014 STREET REPAIR PROJECT 

 
 WHEREAS, the Invitation to Bid for the 2014 Street Repair Project in the City of Kerman was mailed to all 
construction trade journals specified for the City by the California Uniform Construction Cost Accounting Commission in 
accordance with the City’s Informal Bid Procedures and California Public Contract Code Section 22034 and;  

 WHEREAS, the project will consist of the replacement of damaged pavement areas at various locations in the 
City of Kerman; and 

 WHEREAS, the following bids for the project were publicly opened and read aloud at the Kerman City Hall on 
July 29, 2014 at 2:00 p.m.: 

Contractor Total Bid 
Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. $  95,492.40 
Central Valley Asphalt $134,880.00 
B&B Construction Services $143,638.00 

  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer’s Estimate was $73,000.00 and the total budget for the project was $81,000; and 

WHEREAS, the total estimated cost of the project increased to $111,000 including bid of $95,492.40, 
contingency of $5,500 and engineering of $10,000 requiring a budget amendment to add $30,000 to the project; and 

WHEREAS, the project budget will be amended to add $30,000 to the total project using Local Transportation 
Funds. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN RESOLVES upon 
recommendation of the City Engineer: 

 

1. The 2014 Street Repair Project be awarded to Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc., P.O. Box 87, Fowler, 
CA 93625 in the amount of Ninety Five Thousand Four Hundred and Ninety Two Dollars and Forty 
Cents ($95,492.40), and authorizes the City Manager to sign the City's standard form of agreement 
for construction projects, as contained in the bid package on behalf of the City of Kerman. 

 

2. The 2014 Street Repair Project budget be amended to increase project costs by $30,000 for a total 
estimated project cost of $111,000 using Local Transportation Funds and authorizes the Finance 
Director to make necessary budget adjustment. 

71



City Council Staff Report   Page 4 of 5 
Bid Award – 2014 Street Repair Project (Yarbs Grading & Paving, Inc.) 
  

 

 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 20th 
day of August, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

 

 AYES: 
 NOES: 
        ABSENT: 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
 The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
 
 
            
       Gary Yep 

Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
     
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk 
  

72



City Council Staff Report   Page 5 of 5 
Bid Award – 2014 Street Repair Project (Yarbs Grading & Paving, Inc.) 
  

 

Attachment ‘B’ 
 

 

73



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: PUBLIC WORKS 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: AUGUST 20, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Gary D. Horn, City Engineer 
Subject: Resolution Awarding Bid for the 2014 Concrete Project 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council:  

1. By motion adopt resolution awarding the bid for the 2014 Concrete Project to Yarbs Grading and Paving, 
Inc. in the amount of $181,607.00 and authorize the City Manager to sign the agreement; 

2. Approve a change order for the replacement of concrete curb and gutter and sidewalks on Middleton 
Avenue and 8th Street for an estimated cost of $58,000 and authorize the City Finance Director to increase 
the total budget for the Middleton Avenue and 8th Street Concrete Repairs to $65,000. 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY  
 
The 2014 Concrete Project consists of the replacement of damaged curb and gutter and sidewalk along Stanislaus 
Avenue east of Vineland Avenue and 16th Street north of B Street. Bids were received from seven contractors on 
Tuesday, July 22, 2014. The lowest responsive bidder was Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. in the amount of 
$181,607.00. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The City has received complaints regarding the severely damaged sidewalks on Middleton Avenue between 6th 
Street and 8th Street and on 8th Street between Stanislaus Avenue and Sunset Avenue. A Vicinity Map is attached 
showing the limits of the damaged areas. The concrete curb and gutter and sidewalks have been damaged along 
these streets by invasive tree roots. The trees along these streets are planted in tree wells within the sidewalk which 
are not suitable for the type and size of the existing trees. The same tree planting configuration was used on Sunset 
Avenue and Public Works Staff have already removed the trees and replaced the concrete curb and gutter and 
sidewalk that were damaged by the trees. 
 
The removal of the existing trees and replacement of curb and gutter and sidewalk on Middleton Avenue and 8th 
Street was included in the City’s FY 14/15 Budget. Due to the proximity to the 2014 Concrete Project, and the similar 
type of work to be performed, Staff recommends that the concrete repairs on Middleton Avenue and 8th Street be 
added to the 2014 Concrete Project through a Change Order. This will eliminate the execution of a separate project 
for Middleton and 8th. The elimination of the separate project will eliminate expenses associated with preparation of 
a separate bid package, bid process, and award of the separate project. 
 

74



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 6 
Bid Award – 2014 Concrete Project 
  
At the time the Middleton Avenue and 8th Street concrete repairs were added to the City’s Budget, the full scope of 
the work to be performed was not known. A total of $25,000 was included in the budget based on an assumption of 
the extent of damage. A field review of the damage on Middleton and 8th has revealed more significant damage than 
assumed, with significant damage not only to the sidewalk but also the curb and gutter, causing excessive standing 
water in the gutter. Based on the field review, the estimate for the repairs was revised and the estimated 
construction cost increased from the original $25,000 to $58,000. Including engineering, the total project cost is 
estimated to be $65,000. If Council approves the Change Order for Middleton and 8th, the budget for the project will 
be required to be increased by $40,000. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
The City has received complaints from residents along Stanislaus Avenue east of Vineland Avenue and 16th Street 
north of B Street regarding the severe damage to the curb and gutter and sidewalk. In order to address these 
complaints, Staff developed the 2014 Concrete Project. The damage to the curb and gutter and sidewalk was 
caused by invasive tree roots. The trees responsible for the damage have been removed by Public Works Staff or 
will be removed as part of the project. 
 
The 2014 Concrete Project was originally bid on May 20, 2014. At the time of the original bid, the scope of the 
project included the replacement of the existing landscaping on the south side of Stanislaus Avenue along the 
frontage of the City’s storm drainage basin and also the re-planting of trees along Stanislaus Avenue and 16th 
Street, along with the primary concrete replacement component of the project. However, the bids received for the 
project were higher than anticipated. Due to this, it was recommended by Staff that the bids be rejected, the scope 
of the project revised, and the project re-bid. Council approved this recommendation at the June 18, 2014 meeting 
and rejected all bids. 
 
The revised scope of the 2014 Concrete Project consists of the following: 
 

1. Replacement of damaged curb and gutter and sidewalk along both sides of Stanislaus Avenue from 
Vineland Avenue to approximately 900 feet east; 

2. Replacement of damaged curb and gutter and sidewalk along both sides of 16th Street from B Street to 
north of C Street. 

 
The project was advertised for bids beginning on July 2, 2014. Bids were received from seven contractors on 
Tuesday, July 22, 2014, and the results are as follows: 
 

Contractor Total Bid 
Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc.  $181,607.00 
Dawson-Mauldin Construction, Inc $186,654.60 
Avison Construction, Inc. $189,579.00 
Hobbs Construction, Inc. $191,801.00 
B&B Construction Services $232,117.00 
American Paving Co. $249,089.40 
V&G Builders, Inc. $288,478.93 
  
Engineer’s Estimate $192,000.00 

 

75



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 6 
Bid Award – 2014 Concrete Project 
  
We have reviewed the bid submitted by Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc., along with information regarding their 
previous work experience. Based on our review, we have determined Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc. to be a 
responsible contractor. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
The Stanislaus Avenue and 16th Street Project is included in the City’s Budget in the amount of $286,000 to be 
funded from Local Transportation Funds. In addition to funding the 2014 Concrete Project, these funds were also 
planned to be used to pay for the Stanislaus Avenue basin frontage landscaping renovation. Based on the estimated 
cost of the concrete project, $45,000 will remain for the basin frontage landscaping renovation. The basin frontage 
landscaping renovation will not be bid until completion of the concrete project to ensure that sufficient funds are still 
available. 
 
As discussed previously, the budget for the Middleton Avenue and 8th Street concrete repairs will need to be 
increased from $25,000 to $65,000 in order to complete the required work. There are sufficient funds available in the 
City’s Local Transportation Funds to account for the increase. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None Required. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A. Resolution 
B. Vicinity Map: 2014 Concrete Project 
C. Vicinity Map: Middleton & 8th Concrete Repairs 

 

76



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 6 
Bid Award – 2014 Concrete Project 
  

Attachment ‘A’ 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN 
ACCEPTING BID FOR THE 2014 CONCRETE PROJECT 

 
 WHEREAS, the Invitation to Bid for the 2014 Concrete Project in the City of Kerman was listed in the Kerman News on 
July 2, 2014 and;  

 WHEREAS, the project will consist of the replacement of damaged concrete curb and gutter, sidewalk, and non-ADA 
compliant curb ramps on Stanislaus Avenue and 16th Street in the City of Kerman; and 

 WHEREAS, the following bids for the project were publicly opened and read aloud at the Kerman City Hall on July 22, 
2014 at 2:00 p.m.: 

 
Contractor Total Bid 
Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc.  $181,607.00 
Dawson-Mauldin Construction, Inc $186,654.60 
Avison Construction, Inc. $189,579.00 
Hobbs Construction, Inc. $191,801.00 
B&B Construction Services $232,117.00 
American Paving Co. $249,089.40 
V&G Builders, Inc. $288,478.93 

  
 WHEREAS, the City Engineer’s Estimate was $192,000.00; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN RESOLVES upon the 
recommendation of the City Engineer that the 2014 Concrete Project be awarded to: Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc., P.O. Box 
87, Fowler, CA 93625 in the amount of One Hundred Eighty-One Thousand Six Hundred and Seven Dollars and Zero Cents 
($181,607.00), and that the City Manager is authorized to sign the City's standard form of agreement for construction projects, 
as contained in the bid package on behalf of the City of Kerman. 

The foregoing resolution was introduced at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Kerman held on the 20th day of 
August, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 

 
 AYES: 
 NOES: 
        ABSENT: 
      ABSTAIN: 
 
 The foregoing resolution is hereby approved. 
              
        Gary Yep 
ATTEST:       Mayor 
 
     
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk  

77



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 6 
Bid Award – 2014 Concrete Project 
  

Attachment ‘B’ 

 

78



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 6 
Bid Award – 2014 Concrete Project 
  

Attachment ‘C’ 

 

79



    
 

 

City of Kerman 

“Community Comes First” 
  

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary K. Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER    
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox           Bill Nijer 

 DEPARTMENT: PARKS AND RECREATION
STAFF REPORT

CITY COUNCIL MEETING
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: AUGUST 20, 2014 

  
To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Philip Gallegos, Parks, Recreation and Community Services Department 
Subject: Resolution Authorizing the Donation and Sale of Surplus Equipment 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council by motion adopt resolution authorizing the donation of 100 chairs and 14 tables to the Kerman Veterans of 
Foreign War (VFW), American Legion and American Legion Auxiliary for use at the new Westside Veterans Memorial 
Building and approve the sale and/or disposal of remaining equipment. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The City accumulates surplus equipment and material that is no longer useable due to its age and working condition. 
The City is proposing to donate, sell or dispose of surplus equipment. The City has previously donated surplus 
property (universal weight machine) from the former Youth Center to the Kerman Unified School District. 
 
Pursuant to the City policy regarding the sale of surplus property for equipment valued at $100 or less, equipment 
that is not approved for donation will be sold without public bidding. Notice of sale will be posted at City Hall, listing 
the items and the amount at which it will be sold for at least one week prior to the sale. Any City employees that bid 
or are awarded the bid will sign a disclaimer/waiver.  
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
None 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
As in the past, the City accumulates surplus equipment and material that is no longer useable due to its age and 
working condition. The City has previously donated surplus property (universal weight machine) from the former 
Youth Center to the Kerman Unified School District.  
 
The City has some surplus chairs and tables primarily from the Community Center; but also from other facilities; this 
equipment has reached the end of its useful life and has been replaced with new equipment. Table and chairs are 15 
years old.  
 
On Tuesday July 29, 2014 City staff received an inquiry from the Kerman VFW and American Legion requesting the 
donation of Community Center surplus chairs and tables for the new Westside Veterans Memorial Building. Staff has 

80



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 4 
 
determined the repurposing the surplus chairs and tables would benefit potentially hundreds of veterans and 
residents. Surplus value of this donation is approximately $340. 
 
Pursuant to the City policy for the sale of surplus property for equipment valued at $100 or less, the equipment that is 
not donated will be sold without public bidding to any eligible party paying a fair price. Notice of sale will be posted at 
City Hall listing the items and the amount at which it will be sold for at least one week prior to the sale. Any City 
employees that bid or are awarded the bid will sign a disclaimer/waiver.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT  
 
Total surplus value for of this used property including donation under $500 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 
None 
 
REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION  
 
Donating this unused equipment will not result in any decrease in City service levels. The donation would be an act of 
good will by helping local veterans groups equip their new Westside Veterans Memorial Building. 
 
Attachments: 
 

A.  Resolution w/Exhibit 
  

81



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 4 
 

Attachment ‘A’ 

RESOLUTION NO. 14-__ 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF KERMAN  
AUTHORIZING THE DONATION AND SALE OF SURPLUS EQUIPMENT 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Kerman has certain surplus property, as set forth in Exhibit ‘A’, which is no longer needed for 

public use; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends that portion of equipment in Exhibit ‘A’ be donated and the remainder be offered for 
sale, per the guidelines set forth in the Policy and Procedures for the Sale of Surplus Property by the City of Kerman; and  

WHEREAS, a request was made by the Kerman Veterans of Foreign War (VFW), American Legion and American 
Legion Auxiliary for surplus equipment for use the new Westside Veterans Memorial Building; and 

WHEREAS, staff recommends 100 folding chairs and 14 banquet tables be donated to the Kerman Veterans of 
Foreign War (VFW), American Legion and American Legion Auxiliary; and 

WHEREAS, staff believes the donation of the surplus equipment will benefit local veteran and the people of Kerman. 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Kerman City Council as follows: 
1. The donation of a portion of equipment listed on Exhibit ‘A’ be donated to the Kerman Veterans of Foreign War (VFW), 

American Legion and American Legion Auxiliary for surplus equipment for use the new Westside Veterans Memorial 
Building, is hereby approved and staff is directed to invite representatives of the VFW, American Legion and American 
Legion Auxiliary to select 100 chairs and 14 tables from the surplus, with such representatives selecting such items as 
they believe to be safe and suitable for their intended uses. 

2. Surplus equipment minus the donated equipment listed on Exhibit ‘A’, is authorized for sale pursuant to the guidelines 
set forth in the Policy and Procedures for the Sale of Surplus Property by the City of Kerman 

The foregoing resolution was approved by the City Council of the City of Kerman at a regular meeting held on the 
20th day of August, 2014, and passed at said meeting by the following vote: 
   
 AYES: 
 NOES: 
 ABSENT: 
 ABSTAIN: 
 
The foregoing resolution is hereby approved.  
              
        ___________________________ 
        Gary Yep 
ATTEST:        Mayor 
 
____________________________ 
Marci Reyes 
City Clerk  

82



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 4 
 

Exhibit ‘A’ 
 

Surplus Equipment List 
Parks & Recreation  

 
DATE QTY. EQUIPMENT EST VALUE AGE 
8/14/14 203 Metal Fanback Padded Folding Chair $2.00 ea. 15 yrs 
8/14/14 40 Metal Padded Folding Chair $2.00 ea. 15+ yrs 
8/14/14 36 Metal Folding Chairs $2.00 ea. 12 yrs 
8/14/14 11 Metal Padded Chairs $2.00 ea. 20 yrs 
8/14/14 3 Padded Office Chairs $5.00 ea. 15 yrs 
8/14/14 14 8 ft. Folding Tables $10.00 ea. 15 yrs 
8/14/14 4 72 inch Round Tables $10.00 ea.  15 yrs 

 
 
 
 

83



    
 
 

  City of Kerman 
“Where Community Comes First” 

 

   

MAYOR MAYOR PRO-TEM 
Gary Yep Doug Wilcox 

COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER COUNCIL MEMBER      
Raj Dhaliwal Nathan Fox                     Bill Nijjer 

 DEPARTMENT: FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
COUNCIL MEETING DATE: AUGUST 20, 2014 

 To: Mayor and City Council 
From: Luis Patlan, City Manager/Director of Planning & Development 

Toni Jones, Finance Director 
Subject: General Fund Reserve Policy 

RECOMMENDATION  
 
Council receives presentation and direct staff to prepare a resolution that establishes a policy regarding General 
Fund reserves. 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY   
 
The City of Kerman wishes to adopt formal General Fund Reserve policies for several reasons: 1) to have funds 
available for use in emergencies or to cover unanticipated costs; 2) to be drawn upon when revenues fall short of 
projections; and 3) to cover the cost of repairing and replacing capital facilities and equipment. The General Fund 
Reserve Policy will be an integral part of the City of Kerman’s overall financial plan. 
 
OUTSTANDING ISSUES  
 
The City of Kerman currently does not have formal policies in place regarding the level of reserves to be maintained 
in the General Fund. 
 
DISCUSSION  
 
Formal adopted General Fund Reserve policies are common for California municipalities. Cities have created 
reserve policies, in part, to provide a reserve cushion to be drawn upon during tough budget years. The Great 
Recession of 2009 was a prime example of when reserve funds were used to cover operating expenditures as 
revenues fell short of projections. For example, the City’s General Fund Reserves peaked at $1.8 million in FY 
2007/08 and dropped to $1.5 million in FY 2010/11. 
 
Fiscal stability is an important factor for all cities. Sound financial management includes the practice and discipline of 
maintaining adequate reserve funds for known and unknown contingencies. Such contingencies and occurrences 
include, but are not limited, to: 
 

• Unfunded Federal, State or judicial mandates 
• Unexpected declines in revenues created by economic downturn or loss of major revenue source 
• Unexpected large one-time operating expenditures or capital asset and infrastructure replacement 
• Unexpected Federal/State/County budget cuts 
• Local emergencies or losses due to litigation 
• Cash flow requirements 

84



City Council Staff Report    Page 2 of 8 
General Fund Reserve Policy 
  
The establishment of financial reserve policies is prudent in order to ensure the long-term financial health of the City 
but also demonstrates creditworthiness to bond rating agencies and the financial community. For example, Standard 
& Poor’s recently upgraded the City’s credit rating from A- to A primarily based on the City’s budget performance 
and solid reserves. This is important as it makes it easier for Kerman to borrow money at lower costs. 
 
The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA), an international organization that promotes the professional 
management of governments for the public interest, recommends maintaining a minimum unreserved fund balance 
in the General Fund of no less than two months or 17% of General Fund Operating Expenditures. According to the 
GFOA, the methodology used to create the reserve depends on the circumstances of the individual organizations. 
The GFOA also recommends the establishment of a formal written policy on the level of unreserved fund balance 
that should be maintained in the General Fund. 
 
Consistent with most municipalities, the City will use the General Fund Operating Expenditures as the basis for a 
reserve. Typically there is less fluctuation and risk in forecasting future expenditures. Furthermore, the City has 
more control over operating expenditures as reductions can be made as needed due to economic conditions. The 
City has little to no control over revenues. Thus, using General Fund operating expenditures is a more conservative 
methodology for establishing a General Fund Reserve. 
 
General Fund 
 
The General Fund is used to cover core services to the community. It accounts for all general revenues including 
property tax, sales tax, building fees, as well as other fees and charges. These revenues are used to fund general 
ongoing City operations such as police, parks, recreation, building and planning as well as other general support 
services. 
 
In Fiscal Year 2014/15, General Fund revenues are projected to be $4,485,234 with expenditures totaling 
$4,265,502. Sales and property tax revenues comprise 75% of all General Fund revenues. These revenues sources 
are subject to volatility during an economic downturn or if a major business shutters or relocates. Conversely, police 
and parks/recreation operations comprise approximately 80% of all General Fund expenditures with the balance 
expended on legislative, public works, planning and building functions. 
 
Figure 1 and Figure 2 on the preceding page shows historical trends for sales and property tax revenues. As 
reflected in Figure 1, sales tax revenues dipped twice between 2000 and 2010. The first drop was during the 
2000/01 recession when sales tax revenues dipped 22% from $786,594 in 2001 to $609,900 in 2003. The second 
dip was during the 2009 Great Recession when revenues dropped 11% from $1,011,429 in 2008 to $901,506 in 
2009. The sales tax revenue loss was $176,694 in 2000-02 and $109,923 in 2008/09. In both instances it took three 
years for the local economy to recover the lost sales tax revenues. 
 
Figure 2 shows that property tax revenue also dropped twice during the same decade. Property tax revenues 
decreased by 11% from $803,95 in 2003 to $714,311 in 2004 and by 21% from $1,773,088 in 2008 to $1,410,733 in 
2009 as a direct result of the housing crash and subsequent wave of foreclosures. The property tax revenue loss 
was $89,693 in 2003/04 and $362,355 in 2008/09. The City has yet to recover the lost property tax revenues caused 
by the Great Recession even though home prices have stabilized and prices began appreciating in 2011/2012. 
 
In summary, sales tax revenues dropped by a combined $286,052 during the two economic contractions and 
property taxes dropped a combined $451,849 in the same period. 
  

  

85



City Council Staff Report    Page 3 of 8 
General Fund Reserve Policy 
  

Figure 1 
Historical Sales Tax Revenues (2000 through 2013) 

 
 
 

Figure 2 
Historical Property Tax Revenues (2000 through 2014) 

 
 

  

86



City Council Staff Report    Page 4 of 8 
General Fund Reserve Policy 
  
General Fund Reserves 
 
The City’s unaudited General Fund reserves are estimated to be approximately $2,681,869 as of June 30, 2014. 
This represents an undesignated General Fund reserve balance of approximately 63% of expenditures. 
 
As reflected in Figure 3, General Fund reserves peaked in fiscal year 2007/08 at $1,882,456, declined to $1,562,000 
in fiscal year 2010/11 following the Great Recession, and is projected to increase to $2,736,601 by the end of FY 
2014/15. Reserves have steadily increased primarily due to revenues exceeding expenditures and from one-time 
revenues received to cover administration of the Successor Agency to the former Kerman Redevelopment Agency 
and legal settlement with the County. Revenues for the Successor Agency were reduced in fiscal year 2014/15 and 
are expected to cease in fiscal year 2016/17 as the winding up of the RDA is expected to be completed. 
 
Figure 3 
General Fund Reserves 

 
 
Major Capital Facilities and Equipment 
 
The City of Kerman owns, operates and maintains several major facilities such as buildings, parks and ancillary 
equipment. The General Fund is the primary fund that pays for the maintenance, repair and replacement of these 
facilities and equipment. As these facilities and equipment age, repairs and replacement will need to be made. For 
example, the City expended $35,000 in FY 13/14 to replace the roof and repair the HVAC units at the police 
building. In FY 14/15, the City budgeted $75,000 from General Fund reserves to remodel the animal shelter. The 
General Fund is the primary funding source for the repair and replacement of these facilities. Table 1 list all major 
buildings and Table 2 lists all parks. 

  

1,882,456 
1,801,786 1,731,920 

1,562,020 
1,643,548 

2,084,425 

2,681,869 

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

2007-
2008

2008-
2009

2009-
2010

2010-
2011

2011-
2012

2012-
2013

2013-
2014

General Fund Audited Reserves
(Estimate for FY 2013/14)

87



City Council Staff Report    Page 5 of 8 
General Fund Reserve Policy 
  
 

Table 1 
City Buildings 
Building Condition Description 
City Hall Excellent Building was remodeled and expanded in 2009. Front entrance will need to 

be replaced for ADA compliance. Future maintenance, repair and 
replacement of HVAC, roof, flooring and parking lot will need to be made. 

Police Department Fair/Poor Building is dated and not functional for a modern police operation. Interior 
layout needs to be reconfigured. HVAC units over 20 years old. Flooring 
needs to be replaced. Other minor repairs required. 

Senior Center Fair/Poor Building is owned by KUSD and leased to the City at no cost. Structure was 
built at the turn of the 20th century. ADA compliance issues need to be 
addressed. A new facility will be needed in lieu of repairs to existing 
structure that is not city-owned. 

Community/Teen Center Good Building was built in 1999. Future maintenance, repair and replacement of 
HVAC, roof, flooring and parking lot will need to be made. 

Animal Shelter Poor The existing kennel is old and does not to meet state requirements. The 
cost to remodel or build a new facility will need to be evaluated. Even 
though $75,000 was budgeted to remodel the kennel, a new kennel may be 
required at an estimated cost of $350,000-$450,000. 

 
The City owns, operates and maintains over 40 acres of existing parks. Parks range in size from 1 to 18 acres. As 
reflected in Table 2, many of the parks have added features such as playground equipment, concession stand, 
restrooms and parking lot. As these park facilities age, many of these items will need to be repaired and replaced. 
This does not take into account any additional equipment or amenities at existing parks. For example, $80,000 was 
budgeted from General Fund Reserves for a new restroom at Soroptimist Park. The addition of playground 
equipment at B Street Park may also be funded from reserves in FY 15/16. 
 

Table 2 
Existing City Parks 
Existing Parks Ancillary Equipment  
Park Acres Concession Pavilion Restroom Playground B-Ball Court Bleachers Parking 
Lions 18.0 ü  ü  ü  ü  ü   ü  
Kerckhoff 5.75 ü  ü  ü  ü   ü  ü  
Rotary 4.95 ü   ü  ü     
Katey’s* 3.0   ü  ü     
Soroptimist** 2.14   ü  ü     
Kiwanis 2.12    ü  ü    
Plaza 2.5   ü      
Wooten 1.5    ü     
B Street 1.0        

Totals 40.96        
*Katey’s Kids Park is under development and is expected to be completed in October of 2014. 
**Pre-fabricated restroom at Soroptimist Park is planned for Spring/Summer of 2015. 
 

  

88



City Council Staff Report    Page 6 of 8 
General Fund Reserve Policy 
  
In addition to existing parks, Table 3 lists several new parks planned for development as funding is available. 
 
Table 3 
Planned Future Parks 

Park Size Type Est. Cost 
Goldenrod/California Park 40 acres Community Park $8.0 - $12.0 million 
California/Goldenrod Park 15 acres Community Park $4.5 - $5.2 million 
Stanislaus Park 2 acres Neighborhood Park $400k  
 
Depending on the use and design of the park, the average cost to develop a new park ranges from $200,000 to 
$300,000 per acre. For example, the City submitted a $4.5 million Prop. 84 grant to develop the 15 acre park on 
California and Goldenrod. Although the grant was not awarded, the cost to develop the active park was estimated at 
$300k per acre. Funding for new park development is limited and, when grant funds are available, applications are 
very competitive. 
 
General Fund Reserve Policies 
 
Adoption of a formal General Fund Reserve Policy will provide a basis to manage significant financial events more 
effectively and adequately plan for repair and replacement of capital assets in the future. Without sufficient reserves, 
these unknowns can place the City in a precarious position that could have significant negative effects on staffing 
and service levels. In order to ensure a continued orderly operation of City services and to address any unforeseen 
economic occurrences the City desires to establish reserve policies for the General Fund by establishing the 
following categories of reserve accounts: 
 
Table 4 
Minimum Reserve Policy 

Reserve Account Purpose Minimum Reserve 
1. Emergency Reserve Cover an emergency, unanticipated 

expense or cash flow needs 
25% of operating expenditures 

2. Revenue Stability 
Reserve 

Cover any unanticipated drop in sales 
or property tax revenues 

15% of operating expenditures 

3. Major Asset Repair and 
Replacement Reserve 

Cover any repairs and replacement of 
major facilities and equipment 

5% for repairs and 10% for replacement of 
operating expenditures 

4. Undesignated Reserve Cover any discretionary expenditures 
approved by the Council 

Any amount remaining after meeting 
minimum reserves 

 
Emergency Reserve 
 
The City Council should consider establishing an emergency reserve account equal to three months or 25% of 
operating expenditures to cover any emergency, unanticipated expense or for cash flow needs to pay for ongoing 
operations. The FY 2014/15 General Fund expenditures total $4,265,502. Three months of emergency reserves 
total $1,066,375 or about twenty five percent of expenditures. Although it is difficult to predict an emergency or 
unanticipated expense, staff is recommending that a minimum emergency reserve be set at 25% of expenditures.  
 
Revenue Stability Reserve 
 
The severity of the economic recession of 2009 highlighted the need to establish and maintain an adequate reserve 
policy to offset significant economic downturns more effectively. Economic uncertainty is a constant in our economic 
system. The economy is in the fifth year of a slow recovery. Historically, the economy has experienced a contraction 
within four to five years following a recovery from a previous recession. The question is not, if, but when will the 
economy experience another contraction. 

89



City Council Staff Report    Page 7 of 8 
General Fund Reserve Policy 
  
As reflected in Table 5 and Table 6, sales tax revenues declined by 22% and 11% and property tax revenues 
declined by 11% and 20% during the last two recessions resulting in a combined loss of $286,052 is sales tax 
revenue and $451,849 in property tax revenue. Staff is recommending a minimum Revenue Stability Reserve of 
15% of operating expenditures equal to $639,825 as a buffer against a loss of revenue due to an economic 
contraction or a loss of a major sales tax generating business. 
 
Table 5 
Sales Tax Revenues and Percentage Change (2000-2014)Table  

Year Total $ Difference % Change 
2000 778,349   
2001 786,594 8,245 1.06% 
2002 637,810 -148,784 -18.91% 
2003 609,900 -27,910 -4.38% 
2004 621,657 11,757 1.93% 
2005 721,209 99,552 16.01% 
2006 833,215 112,006 15.53% 
2007 850,043 16,828 2.02% 
2008 1,011,429 161,386 18.99% 
2009 901,506 -109,923 -10.97% 
2010 908,433 6,927 0.77% 
2011 991,942 83,509 9.19% 
2012 1,161,335 169,393 17.08% 
2013 1,434,922 273,587 23.56% 

 
 
Table 6 
Property Tax Revenues and Percentage Change 

Year Total $ Difference % Change 
2000 778,349   
2001 786,594 8,245 1.06% 
2002 637,810 -148,784 -18.91% 
2003 609,900 -27,910 -4.38% 
2004 621,657 11,757 1.93% 
2005 721,209 99,552 16.01% 
2006 833,215 112,006 15.53% 
2007 850,043 16,828 2.02% 
2008 1,011,429 161,386 18.99% 
2009 901,506 -109,923 -10.97% 
2010 908,433 6,927 0.77% 
2011 991,942 83,509 9.19% 
2012 1,161,335 169,393 17.08% 
2013 1,434,922 273,587 23.56% 

 
  

90



City Council Staff Report    Page 8 of 8 
General Fund Reserve Policy 
  
Major Asset Repair and Replacement Reserve 
 
The City owns and maintains several major facilities and associated equipment. The cost to repair and replace these 
facilities as they age can disrupt the budget if they are unexpected. Although a more in-depth analysis of the 
condition of existing facilities and the associated cost to repair and replace them will need to be conducted, staff is 
recommending that a minimum of 15% be set aside for major asset repair and replacement with 5% or $213,275 set 
aside for repairs and 10% or $426,550 be set aside for replacement. 
 

Undesignated Reserve 
 
The Undesignated Reserve is the balance remaining after minimum reserves are set-aside. The amounts in the 
Undesignated Reserve can be used at the discretion of the City Council. 
 
Summary 
 
The minimum General Fund Reserve policies will establish four accounts based on a percentage of operating 
expenditures, as shown in Table 7. The proposed General Fund Reserve will be 55% of operating expenditures with 
an undesignated reserve equal to 8%. As part of the General Fund Reserve policies, the Council will review the 
status of reserves annually during the budget process and make adjustments to expenditures and reserve levels as 
necessary. 
 
Table 7 
Minimum General Fund Reserves 
Reserve Account FY 14/15 Operating Reserves Percentage Amount 
Emergency Reserve $4,285,502 25% $1,066,375 
Revenue Stability Reserve $4,265,502 15% $639,825 
Major Asset Repair Reserve $4,265,502 5% $213,275 
Major Asset Replacement Reserve $4,265,502 10% $426,550 

Total Designated Reserves $2,346,025 
Un-Audited General Fund Reserve Fund Balance as of June 30, 2014 $2,681,869 

Undesignated Reserve $4,265,502 8% $345,891 
 
FISCAL IMPACT  

 
Implementing a General Fund Reserve Policy will strengthen the City of Kerman's financial sustainability for the 
future. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING  

 
None. 

 
Attachments: 
 

None 

91


	Agenda
	Minutes
	August 6, 2014

	Payroll
	Payroll/Overtime

	Warrants
	Accounts Payable

	Resolution Approving Tentative Parcel Map No. 14-01, Avila E Street Lots
	Staff Report - Tentative Parcel Map 14-01

	Resolution Approving Proposition 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement for Residential Water Meter Project
	Staff Report - Prop 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement

	Monthly Investment Report Ending July 31, 2014
	Investment Report

	Call for Resolution Requesting Action by Congress on Drought Legislation
	Draft Resolution

	Report on Implementation of State Mandated Emergency Water Conservation Measures
	Staff Report - Water Conservation

	Resolution Awarding Bid for the 2014 Street Repair Project to Yarbs Grading and Paving, Inc.
	Staff Report - Street Repair Project Award

	Resolution Awarding Bid for the 2014 Concrete Project
	Staff Report-Concrete Project Award

	Resolution Authorizing the Donation and Sale of Surplus Equipment
	Staff Report - Surplus Equipment 

	General Fund Reserve Policy
	Staff Report - General Fund Reserve Policy


